Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of ATS Elgi Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ATS Elgi Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, including annexures
to the Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
couclude thal there Is 4 materlal missrarement of this other informarion, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

7

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial contrals with reference ta financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

11,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters
stated in paragraph 11(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 01,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 11(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 11(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

1il.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the financial statements.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2024 under
the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2024.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 45 of the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used two
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and except that the audit trail feature for
payroll software did not operate throughout the year; and for the other accounting
software, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled from
November 06, 2023;

During the course of performing our procedures, except for the aforesaid instances,
where the question of our commenting on whether the audit trail has been
tampered with does not arise, we did not notice any instances of the audit trail
feature being tampered with. (Refer Note 38B to the financial statements)

12. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Nu:ﬁrr 012754N/N500016

NS

QI

Baskar Pannerselvam
Partner
Place: Coimbatore Membership Number - 213126
Date: May 27, 2024 UDIN: 24213126BKFVPY7946
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ATS Elgi
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect he Lrausaclivus aud dispusilions of Uik assels of Uie cotnpauy; (2) provide reasuuable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

F
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Bas annerselvam

Partner

Place: Coimbatore Membership Number: 213126
Date: May 27, 2024 UDIN: 24213126 BKFVPY7946
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of
account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

1. (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

i. (a)

(b)

iii. (a)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets have been
physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3 to
the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if
the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on
the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions, and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to 13 other parties (employees) and stood guarantee to 1
Company (Elgi Compressors Europe SRL). The aggregate amount during the year, and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans and guarantee to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below:

Guarantees | Loans

. (Amount in | (Amount
Particulars Its. in s,

Million) Million)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Others - Fellow subsidiary
- Others - Loans to employees
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Guarantees | Loans
. (Amount in | (Amount

Particulars Rs. in Rs.
Million) Million)

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above

case (including the balances outstanding as at the beginning of the

year)

- Others - Fellow subsidiary 995.50 -

- Others - Loans to employees - 13.79

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

®

iv.

vii. (a)

(Also, refer Note 4, 11 and 37A to the financial statements)

In respect of the aforesaid loans and guarantee, the terms and conditions under which such loans
were granted (considering that the loans have been granted to employees) and guarantee was
provided are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also
regular in payment of interest as applicable.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans.

The loans granted during the year, had stipulated the scheduled repayment of principal and payment
of interest and the same were not repayable on demand. No loans were granted during the year to
promoters/ related parties.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans given, and guarantees provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities. Also refer Note 38 to the financial statements regarding
management’s assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.
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(b) There are no statutory dues of employees’ state insurance, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of
service tax, income tax, provident fund and goods and services tax as at March 31, 2024 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount | Period to ‘ Forum where
in Rs. | which the | the dispute is
million* | amount pending

relates

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 32.72 Assessment | CESTAT,

Year 2009- | Chennai
10 to 2014-
15
Income Tax Act, 1961 Disallowance of | 14.50 Assessment | Commissioner
scientific  research Year 2018- | of Income-Tax
expenditure claimed 19 (Appeals)
u/s 35(2AB)

Employees Provident Fund | Provident Fund | 16.41 September | EPF Appellate

& Miscellaneous Provisions | Dues 2014 ~ | Tribunal

Act, 1952 December

2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods and Services 5.27 2017-18 to | Commissioner
Act, 2017 Tax 2019-20 (GST &
CE)(Appeals),
CGST
Department |

* gross of amount paid under protest amounting to Rs. 7.80 million.

Vviii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) Asthe Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) On the basis of audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year ended March 31, 2024 and there was
no unutilized balance of term loan obtained in earlier years as on April 1, 2023. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised
funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did uul liave any subsldiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause-3{):
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Xi.

Xil.

xili.

Xiv.

Xvi.

(b)

(@

(b)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of
the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in

(a)

(b)

(a)

)

(©

(d)

Xvii.

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received
whistle-blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on our
audit and reporting under this clause.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified
under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group
(as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} has two CLCs as
part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by
the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.
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Xviii.

Xix.

xx. (a)

xxl1.

(b)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer to Note 43 of the Financial Statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any
amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing project/(s) to a special account

in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act. (Also, refer Note 31b to
the financial statements).

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of Standalone Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

< N\ste
\ /
BusRur Panncrsclvam

Partner

Place: Coimbatore Membership Number: 213126
Date: May 27, 2024 UDIN: 24213126BKFVPY7946




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 226,18 218.91
Right of use assets 3() 19.01 4.64
Capital work-in-progress 3 () 2,16 2.65
Intangible assets 3(a) 60.55 62.68
Intangible assets under development 3 () - 1.37
Financial assets
i. Loans 4 9.66 12.53
ii. Other financial assets 5 6.10 4.74
Deferred tax assets (net) 17 22.73 22.32
Non-Current tax assets (net) 6 11.46 10.60
Other non-current assets 5(a) 2.03 1.80
Total non-current assets 359.88 342.24
Current assets
Inventories 7 267.71 297.98
Financial assets
1. Trade receivables 8 390.04 204.34
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 9 199.36 119.64
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 466.86 212.80
iv. Deposits with Financial Institutions 12(a) - 342.00
v. Loans 11 4.13 4.23
vi. Other financial assets 12 20.83 16.73
Other current assets 13 64.82 58.31
Total current assets 1,413.75 1,346.03
Total assets 1,773.63 | 1.688.3_7_]
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 14 0.90 0.90
Other Equity 15 1,237.83 1,131.27
Total Equity 1,238.73 1,132.17
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Lease Liabilities 16 11.96 -
Provisions 18 14.71 12.74
Total non-current liabilities 26.67 12.74
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Lease Liabilities 16 7.31 5.58
ii. Trade payables 19
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 50.59 58.39
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miero enterprises and
N 233.08 272.63
small enterprises
iii. Other financial liabilities 20 65.06 58.79
Provisions 21 20.99 20.73
Other current liabilities 22 131.20 127.24
Total current liabilities 508.23 543.36
Total liabilities 534.90 556.10
|Total equity and liabilities | 1,773.63 | 1,688.27 |

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our reports of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

s
NN %)/

-
-

BASKAR PANNERSELVAM
Partner
Membership No: 213126

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2024

Place: Coimbatore
Date: May 27, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

PRAVEEN TIWARI
Managing Director
DIN: 07527226

Place: Coimbatore
Date: May 27, 2024



ATS ELGI LIMITED
Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations 23 2,623.73 2,297.87
Other Income 24 47.32 57.58
Total Income 2,671.05 2,355.45 |
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 1,105.67 1,021.07
Purchases of Stock in Trade 26 436,11 366.57
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 27 10.14 (32.42)
Employee benefit expenses 28 321.84 307.37
Finance costs 29 0.95 0.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 51.88 40.81
Other expenses 31 477.34 391.41
Total Expenses 2,403.93 2,095.65
Profit before tax 267.12 259.80
Income tax expense
- Current tax 32 68.57 70.11
- Deferred Tax 32 (0.94) (3.12)

Profit for the vear 199.49 192.81
Other comprehensive income
TIterns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 15(c) 2,10 (3.51)
Income tax relating to these items 15(c) (0.53) 0.88
Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax 1.57 (2.63)
Total comprehensive income for the year 201.06 | 190.18
Earnings per equity share 41
Nominal value of the shares (INR) 10.00 10.00

(1) Basic (INR/share) 2,216.57 2,142.33

(2) Diluted (INR/share) 2,216.57 2,142.33

‘The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our reports of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

S

S
BAS P ERSELVAM

Partner
Membership No: 213126

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2024

Place: Coimbatore
Date: May 27, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W
LY

PRAVEEN TIWARI
Managing Director
DIN: 07527226

Place: Coimbatore
Date: May 27, 2024
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity as of March 31, 2024

Equity Share Capital
Note Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2022 14 0.90
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 14 0.90
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.90
Other equity
- Securities General Retained .
Description Note Premium Reserve T Total equity
Balance as on April 1, 2022 180.00 36.81 790.43 1,007.24
Profit for the year - - 192.81 192.81
Other Comprehensive Income - - (2.63) (2.63)
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - - 190.18 190.18
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
Oowners:
Dividend paid 36 - - (66.15) (66.15)
Balance as on March 31, 2023 180.00 36.81 914.46 1,131.27
Balance as on April 1, 2023 180.00 36.81 914.46 1,131.27
Profit for the year - - 199.49 199.49
Other Comprehensive Income - - 1.57 1.57
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 201.06 201.06
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Dividend paid 36 - - (94.50) (94.50)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 180.00 36.81 1,021,02 1,237.83

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our reports of even date
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

o
BAS%#PM@(

Partner
Membership No: 213126

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2024

Place: Coimbatore
Date: May 27, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Coimbatore

PRAVEEN TIWARI
Managing Director
DIN: 07527226

Date: May 27, 2024




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 267.12 259.80
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 51.88 40.81
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 0.29 0.15
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7.47) (4.85)
Interest income (39.52) (31.33)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (0.07) (0.38)
Finance costs 0.95 0.84
Liabilities written back - (11.28)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in trade receivables (96.09) (45.53)
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 30.27 (77.84)
Increase in other non-current financial assets (1.36) (0.77)
Decrease in other non-current assets 0.66 1.48
Increase in other current assets (6.51) (2.72)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables (47.17) 92.38
Increase in provisions 4.33 3.89
Increase in other financial liabilities (0.44) 9.98
Increase in other current liabilities 6.83 44.30
Cash generated from operations 163.70 278.93
Income taxes paid (69.43) (73.82)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 94.27 205.11
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment (44.32) (64.15)
Loans to employees (net) 0.11 (5.71)
Payments for procurement of Intangible assets (3.17) (57.85)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.81 6.00
Redemption of deposits with bank/financial institutions (net) 87.94 22,21
Interest received 38.28 31.12
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 87.65 (68.38)
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments of lease liabilities (7.70) (5.90)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders (94.50) (66.15)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (102.20) (72.05)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 79.72 64.68
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 119.64 54.96
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 199.36 119.6.
Non-cash financing and investing activities

-Acquisition/modification of right-of-use assets 20.44 -

The Cash flow from Operating activities are prepared under the Indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions ofa

non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with
investing or financing cash flows.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Acgountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

BASKAR PANNERSELVAM V. ARAJ PRAVEEN TIWARI
Partner Managing Director
Membership No: 213126 : 00003361 DIN: 07527226

Place: Chennai Place: Coimbatore Place: Coimbatore

Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024 Date: May 27, 2024




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

General Information
ATS Elgi Limited ("the Company™) (CIN - U34300TZ2007PLC014125) is engaged in manufacturing of automotive equipments. The Company has a

manufacturing plants in Coimbatore, India and has its registered office in Coimbatore.

Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. This financial statement has been

approved by the board in the meeting held on May 27 2024.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; and

b) defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.
The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified

by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy

already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

As part of adopting amendments to Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, the Company describes its material accounting policies applied,
under each of the individual notes to the Financial Statements and avoids repeating the text of the standard, unless when it is considered relevant to the
understanding of the note's content. These accounting policies most frequently or significantly require us to make judgments, estimates, and
assumptions, and therefore are critical to understanding our results of operation.

Other accounting policies are provided under Note 44 for completeness purposes. The Company’s accounting policies and methods are unchanged
compared to March 31, 2024.

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management

also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be

materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the

financial statements.

The area involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Impairment of trade receivables ~ Note 8

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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3(b)

ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company leases offices and the rental contracts are typically made for 11 months

with extension options specified in sub-note (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants

other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
The balance sheet shows following amounts relating to leases:

Right of use assets
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Land & Buildings
Gross Carrying Amount 4.64 9.26
Additions 20.44 -
Accumulated Depreciation (6.07) (4.62)
Net Carrying Amount 19.01 4.64
Lease Liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current 7.31 5.58
Non-Current 11.96 -
19.27 5.58 |
Reconciliation:
Opening Lease liability 5.58 10.64
Add: Lease liability 20.44 -
Add: Interest expense recognised during the year 0.95 0.84
Less: Payment of lease liabilities (7.70) (5.90)
Closing balance 19.27 5.58
ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Depreciation charge on Right of use assets
- Land & Buildings 6.07 4.62
6.07 4.62
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 0.95 0.84
Expenses relating to short term leases (included in Other expenses) 1.87 1.42

(iii) Cash outflow

The total cash outflow for leases is INR 9.07 million for the period ended March 31, 2024. (March 31, 2023: INR 7.32 million).

(iv) Extension and termination options

The Property is taken on lease from Elgi Equipments Limited, the holding company & ESVEE Consultants & Engineers Pvt Ltd. The lease can be extended with

the consent of the lessor and management approval.

(v) Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be

extended (or not terminated).

Refer note 44 (b) for other accounting policies related to leases.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Fmancm.l mtements as atand for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
(a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
(b) the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, loans and other financial assets such as security deposits.

The Company does not have any financial assets which are classified as fair value through other comprehensive income:

Refer note 44 (f) for other accounting policies related to financial assets.

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Loans (Non-current)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 9.66 12.53
Total 9.66 12.53
Other financial assets
Security Deposits 6.10 4.74
Total 6.10 4.74
Other non-current assets
Prepaid expenses - 0.66
Capital advances 2.03 114
2.03 1.80
Non-Current tax assets (net)
Opening Balance 10.60 6.01
Add: Tax Paid 69.43 73.82
Less: Current tax payable for the year (68.57) (69.23)
Total 11.46 10.60
Inventories
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in first-out basis.
Refer note 44 (e) for other accounting policies relating to inventories.
Particulars
(a) Raw Materials* 137.77 156.51
(b) Work-in-progress 20.79 15.38
{c) Finished goods 22,32 32.68
{d) Stock-in-trade 83.79 88.99
1.58 1.57
1.46 2.85 |
267.71 297.98

* Includes goods in-transit amounting to INR 45.08 million and INR 64.59 million as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Notes:

(a) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes INR 6.31 million (March 31, 2023- INR 3.89 million) in respect of provision for slow moving

inventories.
(b) Raw materials, Work in progress and Finished goods include R&D inventory also.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method (i.e EIR is nil), less loss allowance.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from

initial recognition of the receivables.

Unsecured, con31dered good 390.04 204.34
6.09 8.41
397.03 302.75
Less : Loss allowance (6.09) (8.41)
Total 390.04 294.34 |

For receivables from related parties refer note 37.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital
(i) Authorised equity share capital:

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Nu.n:lber'ot.' plg=es Amount
(in millions)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
As at April 1, 2022 0.10 1.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.10 1.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 0.10 1.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:- Movements in equity share capital
Equity share
Particulars Nun.‘lber.ol:' shares capital
(in millions)
(par value)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
As at April 1, 2022 0.09 0.90
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.09 0.90
Increase during the year = -
0.09 0.90

" i righ hed ity st

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the amount of dividend per share recognised as distributions to equity shareholders is Rs. 1,050 (March 31, 2023:

Rs. 735/-).

(ii) Shares of the company held by holding/ultimate holding company

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Number of shares Number of shares
(in millions) (in millions)
Elgi Equipments Limited 0.09 0.09
(Immediate and ultimate holding company)
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particul
ars Nun:lber_ot: shares % holding Nun_'lber.ot: shares % holding
(in millions) (in millions)
Elgi Equipments Limited 0.09 100% 0.09 100%
(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Promoter Name Number of shares % of total shares % of total shares
Number of shares
Elgi Equipments Limited 89,400 99.33% 89,400 99.33%
Jairam Varadaraj* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
Anvar Jay Varadaraj* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
Harjeet Singh Wahan* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
B Balakrishnan* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
S Sriram* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
Jayakanthan R* 100 0.11% 100 0.11%
Total 90,000 100.00% 90,000 100.00%

* The shareholding pattern for the promoters have been provided based on the promoters identified in the annual return filed by the entity which is as per the section
2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013. Beneficial interest in respect of these shareholdings’ vests with ‘Elgi Equipments Limited’.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus

Securities premium reserve 180.00 180.00

General reserve 36.81 36.81

Retained earnings 1,021.02 914.46
Total 1,237.83 1,131.27
a) Securities Premium reserve
Opening balance 180.00 180.00
Additions during the year - -
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 180.00 180.00
b) General reserve
Opening balance 36.81 36.81
Additions during the year - -
Deductions / Adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 36.81 36.81
¢) Retained earnings
Opening balance 914.46 790.43
Net profit for the period 199.49 192,81
Item of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 1.57 (2.63)
Appropriations

Dividend on equity shares (94.50) (66.15)
Closing balance 1,021.02 914.46

Nature and purpose of reserves
General reserve: This is available for distribution to share holders.

Retained earnings: Company's cumulative earnings since its formation minus the dividends/capitalisation and earnings transferred to general reserve.

Securities Premium: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

The accounting policy for revenue from operations is as follows:

(i) Sale of products: The Company manufactures and sells a range of Automotive garage equipments and related parts. Sales are recognised when
control of the product has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligations that could effect
the customer's acceptance of products, Delivery oceurs when the product have been shipped from the Company’s warehouse to the specific location in
case of domestic sales, and when a bill of lading is generated in case of exports, the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer
and either the customer has accepted the product in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provision have lapsed, or the Company has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Where the company sells goods and also has transportation obligation, and where
the control of the goods get transferred first, the sale of goods and transportation is treated as separate performance obligations.

The Company's obligation to repair/replace faulty product under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a provision. See note no 21.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due. The credit facility is as per standard industry terms, thus there is no significant financing component.

(ii) Sale of Services: The performance obligations under service contracts are installation, maintenance and other ancillary services as set forth in the
contracts. Revenue from rendering of services are recognised over a period of time. In case of transportation revenue, the Company recovers cost of
transportation from the customers which is either billed separately in the invoice or included in the total transaction price. Where the transaction price
is inclusive of cost of transportation, the Company splits the transaction price into Sale of product and Sale of services. Revenue from Annual
maintenance contracts are recognized over the period of the contract. The cost pertaining to unfulfilled performance obligations are deferred and
recognized over the contract period. Payment for the service rendered is made as per the credit terms in the agreements with the customers. The credit
period is generally as per industry norms, thus there is no significant financing component.

refer note 44 (g) for other accounting policies relating to revenue.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations

- Sale of products 2,462.38 2,175.57

- Sale of services 129.09 91.76
Other operating revenues 15.72 19.66
Rental income 16.54 10.88
Total 2,623.73 2,207.87
Noles:

(a) The amount of transaction price relating to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) as of the end of the reporting period
is Rs. 42.35 million (March 31, 2023: 31.54 million). The same will be recognized as revenue over the period of the service contract.

(b) Refer Note 42 for Disaggregation of Revenue.

Other income

Interest income 39.52 3133
Profit on sale of Asset 7.47 4.85
Foreign Exchange Gain - 2.59
Miscellenous income (net) 0.33 18.81
Total 47.32 57.58 |
Cost of material consumed

Opening stock of raw materials* 144.44 107.16
Purchases 1,092.19 1,058.35
Total 1,236.63 1,165.51
Less:

Inventory of materials at the end of the year* 130.96 144.44
Total 1,105.67 1,021.07
*excluding R & D inventory.

Purchases of stock in trade

Automotive garage equipments 436.11 366.57
Total 436.11 366.57
Changes in inventory of fininshed goods, stock in trade and work in progress

Opening inventory™

- Finished goods 32.68 15.58
- WIP 15.37 9.17
- Stock in Trade 88.99 79.87
Closing inventory*

- Finished goods 22,32 32,68
- WIP 20.79 15.37
- Stock in Trade 83.70 88.99
Total 10.14 (32.42

*excluding R & D inventory.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED

Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Amount spent during the year from unspent CSR bank account.

(v) Closing balance in unspent CSR bank account

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 288.00 277.29
Contribution to provident fund & superannuation scheme 13.45 13.55
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 3.14 3.28
Staff welfare expenses 17.25 13.25
321.84 307.37
Note: For managerial remuneration refer note 37 ()
Finance Costs
Interest Expenses (relating to lease liabilities) 0.95 0.84
0.95 0.84
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3(a)) 39.14 35.65
Depreciation of right of use assets (refer note 3(b)) 6.07 4.62
Amaortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3(a)) 6.67 0.54 |
51.88 40.81 |
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other expenses
Packing & forwarding 49.44 43.92
Consumption of stores 35.21 20,72
Tools consumed 2.84 2.62
Commission 69.22 54.86
Repairs and maintenance
Building 5.64 4.91
Plant and machinery 10.68 9.63
Others 3.89 3.00
Communication expenses 0.91 1.09
Power and fuel 12,82 1145
Transport charges 49.61 42.50
Travelling & conveyance 48.86 46.49
Insurance 2.13 1.47
Advertisement & publicity 7.38 9.01
Printing and stationery 1,29 1.34
Research & Development Charges 9.71 8.16
Bad debts/advances written off 0.29 0.15
After sales expenses 74.69 53.92
Factory expenses 2,26 2.20
Rates and taxes 1.32 1,06
Payment to the auditors (refer note 31(a) below) 1.24 1.05
Subseription & membership 0.78 0.18
CSR expenses (refer note 31(b) below) 3.81 2.88
Rent 1.37 1.42
Legal and consultancy charges 9.35 6.19
Contract manpower 38.33 29.39
Bank charges 1.92 1.16
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translations 4.46 -
Miscellaneous expenses 27.89 21.67
477.34 JoLq1
Details of payments to auditors
Payment to the auditors
- Audit fees 1.00 1.00
- Certification service 0.20 -
- Reimbursement of out of expenses 0.04 0.05
Total 1.24 1.0,
Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Accrual towards unspent obligations in relation to ongoing projects (refer note below) 3.81 2.88
Total 3.81 2.88
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 3.81 2,88
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 3.81 2.88
| Details of ongoing projects
Unspent obligations of year ended March 31, 2024
(i) Opening balance with unspent CSR bank account - =
(ii) Amount transferred to unspent CSR bank account during the year 2.88 2,50
(iii) Amount required to be spent during the year 3.81 2.88
(2.88) (2.50)

Note: For the year ended March 31, 2024 the Company had unspent amounts relating to ongoing CSR projects under section 135(6) amounting to ¥
3.81 million (PY ¥ 2.88 million) which has been transferred to 'Unspent CSR Bank account’ within 30 days from the end of the financial year.
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Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 68.57 70,11
Total current tax exp: 68.57 70.11
Deferred tax

Increase in Deferred Tax Asset (0.94) (3.12)
Total deferred tax relief (0.94) (3.12)
Income tax expense 67.63 66.99
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax

rate:

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 267.12 259.80
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% 67.23 65.390
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable

income:

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 0.93 0.72
Others (0.53) 0.88
Income tax expense 67.63 66.99
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33 Employee benefit obligations

(i) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave.
Total provision for compensated absences of INR 18.98 million and INR 16.51 million as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
respectively. The provision amount of INR 4.27 million (March 31, 2023 - INR 3.77 million) is presented as current.

(ii) Defined contribution plan
The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 13.45 million (March 31, 2023 - INR 13.55 Million).

Provident fund:
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary

as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited
to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Superannuation fund:
The company contributes a percentage of eligible employees salary towards superannuation fund administered by ATS Elgi Limited Superannuation
Fund and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 1.99 million (March 31, 2023 - INR 1.92 Million).

(iii) Post-employment benefit obligation - Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
perioed of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per
month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity is a funded plan and the Company makes
contribution to recognised fund in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a
period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Particulars Preser‘lt w?lue Fair value‘of plan Total

of obligation
April 1, 2022 34.30 35.22 (0.92)
Current service cost 4.14 - 4.14
Past service cost - - -
Transfer In / Out* (1.36) - (1.36)
Interest expense/income*® 2.17 1.66 0.52
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4.95 1.66 3.28
Remeasurements - actuarial gain or loss
Gain/loss from change in demographic assumptions* 0.24 - 0.24
Gain/loss from change in financial assumptions* 2.43 (0.14) 2.57
Experience gains/losses* 2 0.85 0.16 0.69
Changes in asset ceiling excluding amounts included in interest expense - - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 3.52 0.03 3.51
Employer contributions - 1.98 (1.98)
Benefit pavments (3.50) (3.04) (0.46)
March 31, 2023 39.26 35.83 3.44
April 1, 2023 39.26 35.83 3.44
Current service cost 4.60 - 4.60
Past service cost - - -
Transfer In / Out* (1.72) - (1.72)
Interest expense/income* 2.74 2.48 0.26
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 5.62 2.48 3.14

s’
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Remeasurements - actuarial gain or loss
Gain/loss from change in demographic assumptions* -

Gain/loss from change in financial assumptions* 0.47 (0.33) 0.80
Experience gains/losses* (2.73) 0.17 (2.90)
Changes in asset ceiling excluding amounts included in interest expense - - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.26) (0.16) {2.10)
Employer contributions - 3.42 (3.42)
Benefit payments (2.07) (1.82) (0.25)
March 31, 2024 40.55 39.75 0.80

* The figures are to be considered as (gain)/loss for present value of obligation and gain/(loss) for fair value of plan assets.

‘The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Present value of funded obligations 40.55 39.26
Fair value of plan assets 39.75 35.82
(Excess)/Deficit of funded plan 0.80 3.44

(iv) Post-employment benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate 7.20% 7.40%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate 12.00% 12.00%
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 7.40% 6.80%
(v) Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Discount Rate + 50 BP 7.70% 7.90%
Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 39.40 38.08

B. Discount Rate - 50 BP 6.70% 6.90%
Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 41.79 40.50

C. Salary Escalation Rate +50 BP 10.50% 10.50%
Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 41.57 40.28

D. Salary Escalation Rate -50 BP 9.50% 9.50%
Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 39.58 38.27

Current Service Cost 4.60 4.14

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

P
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(vi) The major category of plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fund Managed by LIC of India 100.00% 100.00%_
100.00% 100.00%

(vii) Risk exposure
The Company operates the gratuity Plan through ATS Elgi Limited Gratuity Fund which is invested in Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Asset volatality: A large portion of the investment made by the LIC is in government bends and securities and other approved securities. Hence, the
Company is not exposed to the risk of asset volatality as at the balance sheet date.

Changes in bond yield: A decrease in bond yield will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in value of plan's bond
holdings.

Inflation risks: In the pension plans, the pensions in the payment are not linked to inflation, so this is a less material risk.

(viii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.49 years (March 31, 2023 — 8.65 years).
The following payments are expected future payments (undiscounted) of defined benefit obligation in the future years.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 7.14 7.18
Between 1 to 2 years 4.42 4.21
Between 2 to 5 years 17.01 16.01
Beyond 5 years 33.36 32.48

Total 61.93 59.88




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

34 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Loans to employees - - 13.79 - - 16.76
Trade receivables - - 390.04 - - 294.34
Cash and other bank balances - - 666.22 - - 332.44
Security deposits - - 6.10 - - 4.74
Others including deposits with financial 5 ; 20.8 : . 8.73
institutions 53 3587
Total financial assets - - 1,006.08 - - 1,007.01
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 283.67 - - 331.02
Dealer deposits - - 12,88 - - 12,90
Others - - 71.45 - - 51.47
Total financial liabilities - - 368.00 - - 395.39

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured
at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The entity does not have any recurring fair value measurements, nor does the entity have fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3), accordingly the related disclosures are not relevant to the company.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

At March 31, 2024 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Loans

Loans to employees 4,11 - - 13.79 13.79
Security deposits 5 - - 6.10 6.10
Total financial assets - - 19.89 19.89

o
o
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Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

At March 31, 2023 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Loans to employees 4,11 - - 16.76 16.76
Security deposits 5 - - 4.74 4.74
Total financial assets - - 21.50 21.50

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year
The company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

-the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount . amount
Financial assets
Loans to employees 13.79 13.79 16.76 16.76
Security deposits 6.10 6.10 4.74 4.74
Total financial ts 19.89 19.89 21.50 21,50
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - - -

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be
the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. The security deposits are
payable on demand and hence their carrying amount is considered as fair value.

/’Emd
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Capital Management

Risk Management

The Company's Objectives when managing capital are to

- Safeguard their ability to continue as going concern, so they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company being an unlevered entity details with respect to debt-equity ratio has not provided.

Further, lease liabilities bas not been considered as debt. The Company's objective is to manage cash and use leverage at a minimum which is achieved by quicker turnaround of working capital.

b) Dividends

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Equity Shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2024 of Rs.
04.50 66.15

1,050 (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 735) per fully paid share

ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, post the year end, director have recommended the payment of a final dividend of Rs 1,110 per fully paid equity share (March 31, 2023 - Rs 1,050). This
proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

Related Party Transactions

a) Parent entity
The Company is controlled by the following entity:

Ownership interest
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Name Type Place of incorporation

Immediate and Ultimate parent

H 0,
entity India 100% 100%

Elgi Equipments Limited

b) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

3

Name of entity Place of b
Ergo Design Private Limited India
Elgi Gulf FZE Gulf

Elsi Comgmssum Europe SRL b

¢) Other companies with whom transactions have Elgi Ultra Private Limited
taken place during the year in which key Elgi Rubber Company Limited
managerial personnel are interested Industrial Air Solutions LLP
AGT Electronics Limited
ELGI Automotive Service (P) Limited
Niketan Technologies Private Limited

d) Key Management Personnel Mr. Jairam Varadaraj, Chairman
Mr, Praveen Tiwari, Managing Director

e) Key management personnel compensation

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total compensation 11.93 10.39
Sitting Fees of the directors - -

*The above Key management personnel compensation does not include gratuity since the same is computed actuarially for all the employees and amount attributable to key management

personnel cannot be ascertained separately.
The remuneration paid to the Managing Director is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

f) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties: !

Particulars Holding Companny Fellow subsidiary and others
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of goods 1.38 0.20 54.02 35.75
Sale of service 1.87 - - -
Sale of Assets 4.89 - 114 -
Purchase of goods 24.44 25.54 0.68 0,78
Receiving of Services 43.47 25.15 11.77 4.25
Financial guarantee commission received - - 0.07 -
Sale of goods for the year ended March 31, 2024 includes INR 34.24 million relating to sales made to Industrial Air Solutions LLP ( March 31, 2023: INR 29.27 million)
g) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Particulars Holding Company Fellow subsidiary and others

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Payable at the end of the year 10.56 9.06 0.98 0.47
Contract Liabilities - - 9.83 -
Advances from customer at the end of the year 0.13 0.01 0.01 0.09
Total pavables to related parties 10.69 9.07 10.82 0.56
Advances recoverable at the end of the year’ 3.78 -
Receivable at the end of the year 6.69 - 21.52 6.48
Total receivables from related parties 10.47 - 21.52 6.48

h) During the current year, the Company has provided guarantee for loans availed by fellow subsidiary (Elgi Compressors Europe SRL) amounting to EUR 11 million. The financial
guarantee commission for the year ended March 31, 2024 is amounting to INR 0.07 million, the same has been disclosed under other income,

i) Terms and Conditions —
Transactions were made on normal m@nﬂ ; and conditions and at market rates. There were no loans outstanding at any point of time during the year.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosures pursuant to Section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial guarantee - Balance as at the year end
Elgi Compressors Europe S.R.L 995.50 -

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(a) Contingent liabilities
i} Claims against the company not acknowleged as debis
As at March 31, 2024
Nature of dues Amount paid under Forum where the
Demand amount A . .
protest dispute is pending |
Service Tax 32.72 2.73 CESTAT, Chennai
. Commissioner
ds T; . i
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 5.27 0.47 (GST&CE), CGST, CBE
Total 37.09 3.20
As at March 31, 2023
Nature of dues Amount paid under Forum where the
Demand amount : A .
protest dispute is pending
Service Tax 32,72 2.73 CESTAT, Chennai

The Company has filed appeals with the appropriate authorities of Central Excise and Sales Tax Department against their claims.

i) The Company has evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II} West
Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-I/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-
exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident
Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Based on the assessment, appropriate provision has been made in the books of accounts.

‘Whistle blower

The Company has received whistle-blower complaints during the year and for certain matters which were open as at March 31, 2024 (pertaining to employee related matters), based on
preliminary findings these are not considered to have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Company. For the matters closed, the entity has assessed that there is no impact on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Audit Trail Compliance

The Company uses two software for maintenance of its books of accounts, Consequent to proviso Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year commencing on or
after the 1st day of April 2023, the Company is required to ensure that the accounting software and payroll software have a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating
an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and also ensure that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company had undertaken steps to ensure compliance with the above requirement from the beginning of the year and also considered the evolving guidance in this regard.
1. In payroll software, audit trail for changes by end user is completely enabled from February 2024. However, due to limitation in the software, the audit log does not capture some specific

changes and pre-modified values.
2. In respect of the accounting software, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled from November 06, 2023 meeting all the statutory requirements.

Further, the log of audit trail has not been tampered with throughout the period wherever they were enabled.
Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment 20.18 7.57

Intangible assets - 3.08

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 50.51 58.32
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.08 0.07
Principal amount paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 2.39 -
Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Aect, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day _ N
during the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the . 5
appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for the payments already made 0.01 0.00
Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.07 0.06
Amount of turther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest

dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under - -
section 23 of the MSMED Act

The information has been given in respect of vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro and Small enterprises” on the basis of information available with the Company.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Earnings per share
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 321, 2023

(a) Basic carnings per share
Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 2,216.57 2,142.33
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 2,216.57 2,142.33
(¢) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share 199.49 192.81
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company
- used in calculating basic earnings per share 199.49 192.81
- used in calculating diluted earnings per share 199.49 192,81
Profil altributable to equity holders of the company used in calculaling basic earnings per share 190.49 192.81
(d) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings
per share 0.09 0.09
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: - -
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating diluted earnings per share 0.09 0.09
Segment Reporting
The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker. Based on the internal reporting to the Chief operating decision maker, the Company has
identified that the Company has only one segment (manufacture and sale of automotive equipments) and accordingly there are no other reportable segments.
The Company is domiciled in India. Information about entity wide disclosures as mandated under Ind AS 108 are as below:
(a) The amount of revenue from external customers broken down by locations of customers is as below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from sale to external customers
- India 2,480.75 2,189.09
- Outside India 87.58 72.83
Total 2,568.33 2,261.92
Revenue from no single custamer contributes to more than 10% of the total revenue.
(b) The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets (if any) and post-employment benefit assets broken down by the location of the assets is as below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non Current Assets
- India 321.39 302.65
- Qutside India - -
Total 321.39 302,65
Analytical ratios:

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 [ Variance
(a) Current ratio (Hmes) Current assets Current Habilities 2.78 2,48 12%
(b) Debt-equity ratio (times)* Total debt Shareholder's equity Not applicable Not applicable -
(c) Debt service coverage ratio (Himes)* | 'l::.gs available for debt ‘Tolal debt service Not applicable Not applicable| -
(d) Return on equity (%) Met profit Je\;g;ge ghiarcholders 16.83% 18.02% 7%
(e) Inventory turnover ratio (times) COGS Average closing Inventory 5.49 5.24 5%
(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio (times) Revenue Average trade receivables 7.67 8.46 -9%
(g) Trade payable turnover ratio (times) Purchases Average trade payables 4.97 4.91 1%
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (times) Revenue hab“ei:te&assets - mt 2.90 2.86 1%
(i) Net profit ratio (%) Net profit after tax Revenue 7.60% 8.39% -9%
(i) Return on capital employed (%) Earning before interest and taxes |Capital employed 21.64% 23.02% -6%
(k) Return on investment (%) ﬁiz;’ﬁ:ﬁom fixed income Fixed Income investments 6.20% 5.01% 24%
* The entity has not considered lease Habilities and related cash flows as debt.
__.,_-——“___‘—--...\“
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Other Accounting Policies

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate agset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income / (expense).

Refer Note 3(a) for entity specific accounting policies on Property, plant and equipment.

(b) Leases
Asalessee
Leases are recognised as a right of use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for the use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease

and non-lease components.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

« variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:
« where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing

was received
« uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by Elgi equipments limited, which does not have recent third party financing,

and
- makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

« any initial direct costs, and

« restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated aver the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise office equipment and small items of oftice turniture.

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

(c) Business Combinations
A business combination is a transaction or other event in which an acquirer obtains control of one or more businesses and results in the consolidation of the assets and liabilities

acquired. Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The Company also elects to apply the optional test (the concentration test) which permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business on each transaction basis.

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners
of the acquiree. Deferred consideration payable is measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition
date fair value. At each reporting date subsequent to the acquisition, contingent consideration payable is measured at its fair value with any changes in the fair value recognised in
profit or loss unless the contingent consideration is classified as equity, in which case the contingent consideration is carried at its acquisition-date fair value,

While applying the concentration test and other requirements, in case of an acquisition of an asset or a group of assets that does not constitute a business, the entity identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets)
and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group shall be allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a

transaction or event does not give rise to goodwill.




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Impairment of assets
The Company does not have goodwill or indefinitely lived intangible assets, Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less casts of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(e) Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of
purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(f) Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
b) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset excluding trade receivables which do not contain significant financing component at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried

at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three

measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised direct in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/ (expense). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

¢) Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement
of profit and loss within other income/ (expense) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

The Company did not have any financial assets that were fair valued through profit or loss or OCI during and as of year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 35 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

a) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or )

b) The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a finaneial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition - Interest Income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Interest income is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial assets except for financial assets that subsequently become credit
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of loss allowance}.

//Eaaricred A
- Q\}(&E T B 1Ce,
& _

(




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(g) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a promised goods or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the goods or service in an

amount that reflects the consideration (transaction price) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. For each contract with a customer, the
company applies the below five step process before revenue can be recognised:

- identify contracts with customers

- identify the separate performance obligation

- determine the transaction price of the Contract

- allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

- recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Duty drawback : Income from duty drawback is recognised on an accrual basis.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

(i) Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(G) Income taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax

assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in

which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(k) Trade and other Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

() Provisions
Provisions for legal claims, service warranties, volume discounts and returns are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the

provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(m) Employee Benefits
(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render

the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The amount of non-current and current portions of leave obligation is normally determined by a qualified actuary and presented accordingly.
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ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and Superannuation fund.

Gratuity obligations
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period

less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund and superannuation fund contributions to Employee Provident Fund Account as per Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952 and a Life Insurance

Corporation of India respectively. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available,

(iv) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(v) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

(n) Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(o) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but

not distributed at the end of the reporting period

(p) Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is

reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

(q) Research and development
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

-it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use

-management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it

-there is an ability to use or sell the product

-it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits

-adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset are available, and

-the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured,
Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the products include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are
recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use. Research and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria for recognition
as intangible assets are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in the subsequent period.

(r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Managing Director (MD) of the company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker of the Company. He assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions.

The business activities of the Company comprise of manufacturing and sale of automotive equipments. Accordingly, there is no other reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 Operating

Segments.




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(s) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Ttems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional

currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign

operation.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income/other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as a part of the fair value gain or loss.

(t) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolveney or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(u) Earnings Per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

a) the profit attributable to owners of the Company

b)by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year. (note 41).
(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

a) the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

b) the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(v) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.




ATS ELGI LIMITED
Notes to the Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Other Disclosures

(i) The entity does not have any borrowings, accordingly borrowings secured against current assets disclosure is not applicable.
(ii) Utilisation of funds:
The entity has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall;
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in otber persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The entity has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise) that the Company shall:
a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
(iii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in

the books of account.

(iv) The entity has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(v) The entity has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.
(vi) The entity has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(vii) The entity has no downstream investments and accordingly compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable.

(viii) The entity has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the, Board of Directors
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